
----- Original Message -----
From: Sam Samad - EWP
To: NRX-EB@LIST.NATCA.NET
Sent: Friday, May 16, 2008 6:04 PM
Subject: [NRX-EB] IMPORTANT: FAA Engineering Consolidation Briefing Highlights

Brothers and Sisters 

I had an informative telephone call today regarding the meeting that the Agency held in Washington DC, on May 
15th, to brief congressional staff offices on the Agency’s proposed consolidation of Engineering Services.  
Following are some highlights: 

 Relocation of the engineers will not occur until third year of the plan. Time line   is shown in ESEP hand-
out page 15. 

 Construction/Resident engineers will not move. 
 Employees in the Regional Offices will not move except ATO employees. 
 Impacted employees are mostly Design Engineers. Position Description of Design Engineer is shown in 

ESEP hand-out page 18. 
 Total number of impacted employees is shown in ESEP hand-out page 13. 
 Impacted employees will be offered incentives such as, incentive bonus, full PCS, option to choose from 

3 Service Areas and priority consideration for vacant field positions. 
 The numbers of employees shown in parenthesis (ESEP hand-out page 13) are Field Engineers/Ops 

Engineers/Techs. They will not be impacted. 
 Administrator will be briefed of this plan within next 2-4 weeks. 
 NATCA will not be briefed until the plan is officially approved by the Administrator. 
 Employees will be notified within next 90 days. 
 Employees may talk to their manager about their situation, i.e. whether they are impacted or not. 

Additionally, on my request, I received the following synopsis of the May 15th meeting, which was written by a 
congressional staff office. As you can tell from the wording of it, the first part reflects the key points that the 
Agency presented.  At the end of the summary, you can see the questions that I wrote and that the attending 
staffers asked on our behalf.

                    **************************Congressional Staff Overview ********************

Overview & Key Points:
This briefing was an update where the speakers primarily went through their power point hand-outs and 

answered questions. In 2000, the FAA was charged by Congress to become a performance-based organization 
and the Air Traffic Organization is their best possible solution. The concept of this plan was made known to 
employees five years ago. It was greatly emphasized that the current paradigm is inefficient and that regional staff 
are involved in an unsustainable trend. The current nine regional offices each have their own way of working and 
standardization will increase efficiency. The argument was made that design engineers are not present in every 
airport in the U.S. and regional staff currently support office staff in other states. Thirty years of empirical evidence 
has shown that the concept of servicing multiple states from one location works. The FAA has also found no 
correlation between the quality of service provided and office locations.

 The plan is still in the pre-decision stage and *within the next 2- 4 weeks* the Administrator will be briefed 
and an up or down decision will be made to move forward with planning. 

 Should plans move forward, the first meeting with engineers is expected to be in 90 days and there will 
likely be several follow-up meetings.

 This part of the plan is the final phase of the Service Area Restructuring Plan and the engineers are the 
last group to be relocated. Management was already relocated to the 3 service areas in 2004. The 
relocation of engineers will not occur until the third year of the plan’s enactment. 

 The plan does not and will never affect construction field engineers, who make up 60% of total 
engineers. Only design engineers will be relocated. 

 A proposed time line is on page 15 of the ESEP hand-out. 
 The number of people affected can be found on page 13 of the ESEP hand-out. However, this number is 

expected to be the worst case scenario and the numbers are expected to decrease. 
 An informal meeting was held with NATCA last week and was productive.

Hand-outs & Highlights:

1. ATO Restructuring power point hand-out 
 In 2000, Congress directed the FAA to establish a performance-based organization- the Air 

Traffic Organization (ATO). 
 Congress was briefed on these plans in late 2005 and early 2006. 



 The restructuring plan included the realignment of 9 regional level offices into 3 service area 
offices. These 3 offices include: (1) Seattle, (2) Dallas, and (3) Atlanta. 

 ATO decided to restructure primarily to: (1) eliminate redundant & duplicate functions, (2) 
increase efficiencies, (3) institute standardization, (4) simplify transactional functions, and (5) 
reduce costs. 

 Projected attrition rates are expected to fall from 3,500 in 2005 to 3,005 in 2009.
     2.   Engineering Services Efficiency Plan (ESEP) power point hand-out

 ESEP is designed to achieve organizational excellence by reducing overhead. The concept of servicing 
multiple states is a concept that was working in the past and this plan will continue to work.

 The relocation of the Engineering Service positions to the 3 service area locations is the final part of the 
plan & has always been a part of the original plan. The program managers have already relocated.

 Benefits of the ESEP include: (1) organizational efficiency, (2) improved customer focus, and (3) cost 
savings.

 Options for impacted employees include: (1) incentive bonus, (2) the ability to choose from the 3 service 
area locations, and (3) priority consideration for vacant field engineering positions within their current 
living area. Additionally, a list of vacant engineering positions in the local area will be provided. The FAA 
realizes that these options may not be sufficient for all of their employees. They cited the FAA’s attrition 
rate of 0.5% as compared the government’s rate of 5% and the private sector’s rate of 10%.

 The cost savings estimate is approximately $400 million in savings over a ten year period with offsetting 
expenses of approximately $49 million through September 2011. A specific cost break-down will be e-
mailed to staffers.

3. Meeting the Challenge- The Story of the Air Traffic Organization brochure.

 Provides background detail as well as an appendix which details restructuring from 2004 until 2009.
Questions asked on behalf of Sam Samad (NATCA EWP Local President)

 Q How many engineers will be realigned from LA?
         A  The estimate is approximately 86; however, this is the worst case scenario.

 Q Were any outside stakeholders invited to weigh in on the proposed consolidation plans?
A This plan has been in development since 2000 & feedback regarding this plan was obtained from 
regional administrators, regional management, and internal customers.

 Q Was an engineering risk assessment report conducted for the proposed realignment & is the report 
available?
A An engineering risk assessment report was conducted and the results concluded that there was no risk 
to move forward with the plan. I will be e-mailed a copy of the report & plan on following up with ------- in 
one week.

In Solidarity,

Sam Samad
EWP Local President
ARP National Representative



----- Original Message -----
From: sam.samad@natca.net
Sent: Friday, May 16, 2008 11:44 AM

Brothers and Sisters:

I am attaching a copy of a PowerPoint presentation that FAA Management gave yesterday to Congressional staff 
personnel in Washington DC concerning the Agency's "Engineering Services Efficiency Plan (ESEP)".   I haven't had 
time to review it in depth, but I don't want to hold it back from your immediate review.  There are a lot of talking points in 
the presentation concerning time lines, the number of positions affected, the position types affected, etc.  The 
presentation also includes an appendix where specific positions are described.  The presentation also includes a 
discussion on ATO Restructuring.

On a separate note:

I just received word from a source in the know, that the FAA will have a meeting in LA on Tuesday to speak with local FAA 
managers about the proposed Engineering Services consolidation.  I understand the meeting is to be very open-ended in its 
scope, and that those who attend will not be limited in what they can pass along to their employees.   It may be, however, that the 
meeting will be restricted to management personnel: I am not sure whether NATCA is to be included or not.  My source also told 
me that unless circumstances change, employees will not be briefed until August because the Agency is still working out the 
details that relate to each employee.

In Solidarity,

Sam Samad



































































 
----- Original Message -----  
From: Sam Samad - EWP  
To: NRX-EB@LIST.NATCA.NET  
Sent: Tuesday, June 17, 2008 11:47 PM 
Subject: [NRX-EB] Risk Assessment Memorandum 
 
All, 

I just received the attached FAA Safety Risk Management Decision Memorandum concerning consolidation 
of engineering services. This Memorandum was provided by the agency in response to a question 
presented by our legislator on behalf of EWP.   

It is apparent from this Risk Decision Memorandum that the agency have not conducted any detail risk 
analysis study nor identified any risks involved in implementing the ESEP!  

Sam 

PS: Note the date it was signed! 
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